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PART I C I PAT ING : 

HAROLD McLEAN, ESQUIRE, STACEY KLINZMAN, ESQUIRE, 

BETH KEATING, and STANLEY JOHNSON, representing Vilaire 

'ommunications, Inc. 

LEE ENG TAN, ESQUIRE, BOB CASEY, and RICK MOSES, 

representing the Florida Public Service Commission Staff. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



3 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

21 

22 

23 

24 

3 

P R O C E E D I N G S  

CHAIRMAN CARTER: So we are now prepared to hear from 

staff on Item 4. 

MR. CASEY: Good morning, Commissioners. Bob Casey 

on behalf of staff. 

Item Number 4 addresses staff's investigation into 

the eligible telecommunications carrier status of Vilaire 

Communications in the state of Florida. Staff's investigation 

determined that Vilaire is overcharging for E911 monthly fees 

to its customers and has received over $1.3 million in improper 

compensation through the Federal Universal Service Low Income 

Program by making misrepresentations to the universal service 

administrative company. 

Staff believes it is no longer in the public interest 

to allow Vilaire to remain an eligible telecommunications 

carrier in Florida or have the authority to provide competitive 

local exchange service in Florida. Therefore, staff is 

recommending that the Commission rescind Vilaire 

Communications' eligible telecommunications carrier status in 

Florida and cancel its competitive local exchange company 

Certificate 8611 as of the date of the consummating order. 

In addition, staff is recommending Vilaire be ordered 

to provide staff with a worksheet showing all E911 overcharges 

since Vilaire received certification in Florida so that staff 

can oversee refunds to customers. Staff is also recommending 
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results of staff's investigation along with the Commission 

order be forwarded to the universal service administrative 

company, the Federal Communications Commission, and the U.S. 

Department of Justice for further follow-up to recover 

universal service funds obtained by Vilaire through 

misrepresentations made to the universal service administrativ 

company. 

Representatives for Vilaire are here this morning and 

are also participating by way of phone, and staff is prepared 

to address any questions the Commissioners may have. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Okay. Let's hear from the parties. 

Mr. McLean. 

MR. McLEAN: Good morning, Mr. Chairman, 

Commissioners. A pleasure to appear before you today, as 

always. I'm Harold McLean from the law firm of Akerman 

Senterfitt here in Tallahassee on behalf of VCI, the company 

which is under your scrutiny today. With me is Beth Keating, 

also from Akerman Senterfitt. As you have noted, Mr. Chairman, 

Stanley Johnson is on the phone. He is the president of the 

company. And also with me is Stacey Klinzman here who will 

Dffer some argument to you this morning. 

You will hear from two of us, essentially. 

MS. Klinzman is going to address some of the technical aspects 

2f the allegations, and I want to underscore allegations, and I 

dill be addressing some of the, at least, three items that I 
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think should be of concern to you, and certainly are of concern 

to us about the staff recommendation itself. So with that, may 

I introduce to you Ms. Stacey Klinzman, who is counsel for VCI. 

Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Okay. Ms. Klinzman, you're 

recognized. 

MS. KLINZMAN: Thank you, Harold. 

My name is Stacey Klinzman. I am the regulatory 

attorney for VCI Company, which is doing business in Florida as 

Vilaire Communications, Inc. Thank you for giving us the 

opportunity to come here and address some of staff's 

allegations in the recommended decision. 

We mainly want you to understand how seriously we 

take these allegations, how important continuing to serve 

Florida is to us, and we also want you to understand that 

staff's recommendation was really the first definitive document 

that we had that laid out specific issues that staff had that 

de then could turn around and try to figure out a way to 

resolve. 

I, unfortunately, cannot address all of staff's 

2llegations today. Some of the staff's allegations is based on 

information that they got from AT&T that we have not had an 

2pportunity to review. Some information was already submitted 

10 staff under cover of confidentiality, and I can't go into 

jetail about it. But right now what I would like to do is 
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emphasize the fact we really do want to work with staff on 

this. We really want the Commission to assist us in learning 

how to be an ETC according to Florida's rules. This company 

does operate according to the federal rules. And with that I 

would like to issue - -  there are two issues today, one is the 

E911 overcharges and the other is staff's allegation that VCI 

is a pure resale carrier. 

Turning to the first issue, which is E911, VCI or 

Vilaire has admitted that they did inadvertently overcharge 911 

zustomers. And we did send to staff, in January, the 911 

Morksheet. Now, Florida Statutes only require a carrier to 

remit E911 charges that are actually paid to it. And the 911 

uorksheet that we sent to staff is an accurate representation 

2f those customers who actually were billed and paid us that 

311 surcharge. So there is no way to do a revised 911 

vorksheet because the one that staff has is an accurate 

representation of those customers who paid us those charges. 

The second issue that I would like to talk about is 

:he fact that VCI is not a purely resale carrier. And there 

ire a number of minor points that need to be - -  that kind of 

ieed to add up to understand that situation. First of all, 

:here are nine supported services that make up universal 

;ervice: Voice grade access to the public switched network, 

.oca1 usage, dual tone multi-frequency, single party service, 

~ccess to emergency services, access to operator services, 
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tccess to interexchange service, access to directory 

tssistance, and toll limitation for qualifying low income 

Iustomers. 

Now, among other things, in order to receive 

miversal service support, 

supported services either through its own facilities, or by a 

:ombination of its own facilities and resale of another 

zarrier's services. 

a carrier must offer the nine 

Now, the FCC has defined a facility as - 

Ind I am going to read you this because they say it so much 

letter than me, I'Any physical components of a 

zelecommunications network that are used in the transmissio 

routing of the services designated for support," and those are 

:he nine services. 

A UNE is one type of facility, but it is not the only 

Eacility that meets this particular definition. 

the FCC has never determined what level of facilities is 

necessary for a carrier to be a combination resale and 

facilities-based offerer of the nine supported services. 

does not require a specific level of - -  the FCC does not 

require a specific level of facilities. 

their own facilities to offer each of the supported services, 

but it may provide one of the supported services by its own 

facilities. And there is a particular example that the FCC 

gives in Report and Order at 12 FCC record. 

carrier could satisfy the facilities requirement by using its 

Furthermore, 

~t 

They don't need to use 

We conclude that a 
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own facilities to provide access to operator services while 

providing the remaining services designated for support through 

resale. And VCI does just that. 

VCI, and staff has this information in great detail 

and I'm not going to go into a lot of detail about the type of 

facilities we have, but we have developed a way of offering 

access to 411 service by our own facilities. That is one of 

the nine supported services, and we supplement that offering a 

form of access to 411 with the resale of the other eight 

services. Thus, we operate within the FCC's rules and orders. 

And we are offering the nine supported services via our own 

facilities and resale of another carrier's services as the FCC 

permits us to do. 

Those are the only two issues that I wanted to 

sddress right now, and I'm certainly open to questions that you 

nay have. Both myself and Mr. Johnson are happy to attempt to 

snswer them. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioners, before I get to 

questions, I wanted to kind of give Mr. Johnson a couple of 

noments. He's on the phone, and we would like to have him 

deigh in. 

Mr. Johnson, if you are there, we would like to give 

fou a couple of minutes to kind of make a couple of statements 

nere before I recognize the Commissioners. 

MR. JOHNSON: Hello, Commissioners. I follow exactly 
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what Stacey said. We've been doing universal service or 

participating in a low income program for four and a half, 

years here. 

for the first time in the order. A lot of these things I 

believe that we could work together and try to follow what 

rules staff believes Florida has that we violated. That's 

pretty much all I have to say there. 

five 

Most of the things that I saw staff ask about only 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Okay. 

MR. McLEAN: Mr. Chairman, Harold McLean here. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Mr. McLean. 

MR. McLEAN: I have a couple of things to add 

whenever you think the time is appropriate. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Okay. I will come back to you. 

MR. McLEAN: Yes, sir. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Argenziano, you're 

recognized. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

I guess my question is a simple one, and it goes back 

to what I found that the FCC, I guess, has found in other 

states, Minnesota, Oregon, and Washington, in that there was a 

failure to keep proper records and duplicate reimbursement for 

low income customers. And I guess my question is, as I say 

very simple, haven't you learned from those three states? You 

seem to feel that there was no wrongdoing here or there was an 

error on the company's part. And it seems to me that you had a 
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track record of doing the same thing in other states, and what 

is your excuse for that here in Florida? 

MR. JOHNSON: I can answer that. We did learn, and 

like I said in all the other meetings, we believe every carrier 

has double billing or there are some multiple billings on every 

carrier's platform, so we are absolutely in the wrong in some 

areas. In Florida - -  I'm sorry, in Washington and Oregon, we 

have invested just about $200,000 in a brand new database to 

try to better track records, because there is a human error 

component. You are getting information from the consumer, a 

human is putting it into our system, also putting it into the 

LEC's system, and the LEC has someone actually who key punches 

things in that don't automatically flow through the system. 

We have made a significant investment in a better 

clomputer system so we can track this information better, and it 

is totally - -  one of the main objectives of ours and has been 

€or the last year and a half, trying to build a system that 

zould better track this transient consumer. 

We are absolutely at fault in some areas, there is no 

ioubt about that. Every carrier has double billing. Actually, 

:he FCC has something on their website that talks about 

10 percent of all carriers submit the 497 incorrectly, so I 

Lhink they acknowledge the system in dealing with a transient 

:ustomer and frames and different platforms, and customers not 

iotifying carriers, that there is going to be some overlap 
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there. But VCI under no terms thinks that it is totally there 

is no wrongdoing there. We are not at all saying that. We do 

better 

we have 

believe we have some wrongdoing. We are trying to get 

year over year, month over month, day over day is what 

been striving to do to track this customer better. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Argenziano, y 

recognized. 

u're 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: I'm just not feeling very 

nrarm and cozy right now. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: We will come back to you. 

Commissioner McMurrian. 

COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: Thank you, Chairman. 

And later I know when the company is finished with 

:heir presentation, I would like to hear from staff more, 

?specially on the points Ms. Klinzman raised about the 

iefinition of facilities and that sort of thing. I was 

somewhat confused by that, so maybe you could help me with 

:hat. 

But first I wanted to ask Ms. Klinzman, I think you 

;aid, and don't let me misquote you, but I think you said that 

;he staff rec was the first document you had that laid out the 

:oncerns. And I just wanted to verify with you, this is not 

.he first time - -  even though it is the first document, it is 

lefinitely not the first time you have heard of these concerns 

rom staff, because you have had at least a couple of 
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conference calls, is that right? 

MS. KLINZMAN: This is correct. There were 

conference calls where questions were asked and information 

went back and forth, but this is the very first document where 

we have a concrete idea of what staff's concerns are. And much 

of what was in staff's recommendation was never addressed 

during the audit. Some of these allegations we are hearing for 

the very first time. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: May I? 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Argenziano. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: To the point that 

Commissioner McMurrian made, at the time that staff - -  there 

were many conference calls from what I understand, and I 

believe the company even questioned - -  it was very clear from 

staff what the problem was at that time, and the company even 

questioned the Commission's authority for oversight of those 

issues. So you knew, the company knew back, I think it was in 

September. Staff, is that correct? 

MR. CASEY: Yes, ma'am. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: So you knew at that point, 

but just questioned our authority to even question you on those 

issues. 

MS. KLINZMAN: May I respond to that? 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Mr. Chair, certainly. 

MS. KLINZMAN: May I be recognized? 
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CHAIRMAN CARTER: You're recognized. 

MS. KLINZMAN: Yes, VCI did question staff's 

suthority to audit a federal program, but we know that we are 

not the only carrier that did that. Fairpoint Communications 

did request some written information from staff as to where 

they drew their authority. 

We are used to being audited by states where they 

have their own universal service funds and USAC. We went 

Ihrough many different audits from those types of entities. We 

lave not yet been audited by a state that does not have its own 

iniversal service fund that actually reimburses carriers. We 

2elieve that was a legitimate question based on our experience 

m d  we know we are not the only carrier that had it. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: You're recognized. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Of course my point is not 

;hat you didn't have the right to ask the question, 

dere advised by staff what the problems were at that time. 

but you 

MS. KLINZMAN: We were advised by staff of some of 

We were asked questions and we gave data back ;he problems. 

m d  forth, but I have to be clear that I truly believe that 

:his is the first document that really sets forth many of 

:he - -  in concrete form what staff's allegations are so that we 

:an actually sit down with them and discuss. 

mything about the fact that they thought we were a pure resale 

:arrier. 

We never heard 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

2 4  

25 

14 

There are a number of other allegations that are 

based on information from AT&T that we have never received and 

never had a chance to review. We have a full request with the 

Commission for that information. We really do want to sit 

down. Now that we know exactly what all of the different 

issues are, we really do want to sit down with staff and work 

this out. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Skop. 

COMMISSIONER S K O P :  Thank you, Chairman Carter. 

Again, I think I share the same concerns that 

probably my colleagues have. 

certainly raised some points as has Commissioner McMurrian. 

Commissioner Argenziano has 

I find it hard to believe, you know, it just seems 

like we are getting a host of excuses and collateral issues. 

We have the president of the company on the phone telling us 

that he knows that there are problems without admitting to 

specifically what the problems are, but there are problems 

related to the billing. 

You know, to come in here and say this is the first 

time we have heard about this; what about proactive disclosure? 

If you know you have problems, perhaps it would be a good idea 

to affirmatively disclose those issues to staff as opposed to 

coming in and saying, well, this is the first time we have 

heard about these concerns. 

But, again, I'm not persuaded. Again, I think staff 
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has adequately defined the nature of what appears to be going 

on here in terms of the conduct of the company. I commend 

staff for its diligent and hard work. I think this is some of 

the finest work I think I have seen staff do since I have been 

at the Commission, and I am strongly in support of the staff 

recommendation. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you, Commissioner. 

Commissioner Edgar. 

COMMISSIONER EDGAR: Mr. Chairman, if it is 

appropriate at this time, could we ask staff to respond to some 

of the comments and issues that were raised by the company? 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: I think this is an appropriate 

time, absolutely. 

Mr. Casey, you're recognized. 

MR. McLEAN: Mr. Chairman, may I respectfully suggest 

that I still have some argument to offer that is consistent 

with what you have already heard from the company, and I think 

you will want to hear staff I s  response to what I have to say, 

as well. But you're the boss. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Mr. McLean, we will be more than 

happy to listen to you. You're recognized. 

MR. McLEAN: Thank you very much, sir. 

Let me tell you that it is difficult for me to 

zriticize a piece of staff's work, because like Mr. Skop, I 

recognize the excellence of your staff, and I served on it for 
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quite a little while. But, nonetheless, my duty is to tell 

about two shortcomings which I believe that it has, and I want 

to suggest to you perhaps a better way to go that will serve 

staff's interests and the public's interest. 

First, what I perceive to be a shortcoming of the 

staff recommendation is its lack of proportionality. This i 

death sentence to the company. Nothing short of that. It puts 

them out of business in Florida. If you vote the staff 

recommendation out, you will propose to remove not just their 

ETC status, but their CLEC license, as well. I would ask you 

to look for a nexus between the nature of the offenses which 

3re alleged and staff's conclusion that this company lacks 

nanagerial, financial, and technical capability to continue in 

the CLEC business. 

They have 5,000 happy customers in the state of 

Florida, from which five complaints have emanated over the past 

18 months that we know of. They have real customers in Florida 

2nd they are serving them well. The allegations in this case 

30 to the issue of payments from the federal - -  or from a firm 

merseen by the Federal Communications Commission. It does not 

3 0  to the quality of service of Florida customers. 

We recognize that the FCC has had some issues with 

;his company. But as Commission Terry Deason said from about 

four of those microphones up there, this is not a field office 

for the FCC. You do not have rules in place governing the 
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behavior of an ETC. It is somewhat difficult for affected 

parties, people in the ETC business to know exactly how to 

conduct their accounting, and it is somewhat easy to run afoul 

of the difficult rules that are currently administered by the 

FCC. 

You have heard from fellow counsel here that there 

are quite - -  it is a fairly complex area to know whether you 

are complying with it. You have heard the response from the 

company. There is a genuine issue of material fact here. The 

staff brings to you allegations. Staff doesn't bring facts to 

you. The proportionality is look at the offenses, look at the 

alleged offenses, and think whether they also need to be kicked 

3ut of the CLEC business. They have happy customers. They 

have happy customers who don't contact you because they don't 

have problems. If you vote affirmatively today, and if that 

recommendation became reduced to law, you scatter those 5,000 

iustomers back to AT&T, and I ask you whose interests would 

:hat serve? 

My second area - -  again, it's difficult to criticize 

staff, because I respect staff a very great deal, but I think 

staff probably should have told you a great deal more about the 

special posture that you are in when you undertake to remove a 

License. Your staff appears as a prosecutorial force. It is 

governed by a case in Florida and many cases which follow it 

:alled the Cherry (phonetic) case, which arose from the Public 
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Service Commission, a case in which the Florida Public Service 

Commission was reversed by the Supreme Court for not 

maintaining a good firewall between prosecutorial staff and 

3dvisory staff. 

Two things that are especially important about that 

is this company, VCI, has two rights that come immediately to 

the forefront when you propose to remove their license. First 

3f all is a disinterested impartial set of judges who have not 

yet made up their minds. 

is staff has the burden to show why they should not continue 

the license, and they must show that by clear and convincing 

zvidence. It is a relatively high standard of proof. The 

zompany will have every opportunity to test that case in 

discovery, including depositions, requests for production, 

requests for admission, and so forth. It is your staff's duty 

to go forward and prosecute this company. And you must 

Difurcate the staff into two sections, one which is accusatory 

3r prosecutorial, and one which is advisory. 

The second thing they are entitled to 

The reason I bring that up is to suggest to you that 

that is a cumbersome and expensive way to proceed when there is 

2 rather better way to go. My suggestion to you is defer this 

zhing once or perhaps two agendas and order the folks involved, 

2s you routinely do and have done over the years, to get 

Iogether and figure out what their differences are. 

I think the scenario that you see in the staff 
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recommendation, aside from whose fault it was, was imperfect 

communications between this company and the staff, which in 

this case is their accusers. If you set them all down around 

the same table with a mandate from this agency to come back 

with either one of two things, either a settlement with respect 

to all the issues perhaps, a settlement - -  or of three things, 

a settlement with respect to as many issues as possible, and a 

sharpening of exactly what the dispute is so that we can save 

time if and when we go to hearing. 

That would give an opportunity for the two sides to 

talk to each other. I don't sense a great deal of a sympathy 

from the questions I have heard so far that this company does 

not have a good grasp of what the wrongdoing that it is accused 

of. It filed a public records request on Friday to discover 

more about the case that is brought against them. They don't 

know exactly what it is. And in western jurisprudence every 

accused person or entity has the right to know the nature of 

the accusations against them so that they can defend adequately 

against them. 

So my suggestion to you is it is a better, cheaper, 

and better use of public and private resources to defer this 

item a couple of times and let these folks talk to each other 

and see if they can sharpen their difference. But, if you are 

disinclined to do that, this is a death penalty case. If you 

vote the staff recommendation out, it becomes proposed agency 
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action, and if it goes unprotested these folks are out of 

business in the state of Florida. They must protest. 

I don't want to express a threat to you. It is not a 

threat. I respect proposed agency action, had a hand in it at 

its origin, but you can't face the firing squad without having 

something to say. 

of business, so they must protest. 

And your recommendation would put them out 

My point in mentioning that is it will inevitably go 

to hearing if you accept the staff recommendation. 

be true, 

to these folks to work out their differences with staff, a very 

able staff, if you are disinclined to do that, then by all 

means simply set it directly to hearing and we will hear what 

the staff has to say and what their case is against the company 

in much more formal and I think expensive surroundings. 

And if that 

and if you are disinclined to afford the opportunity 

Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you. 

Commissioners, are we going to listen to staff before 

coming back to the Commissioners? 

Commissioner Argenziano, you're recognized. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Thank you. 

I would just like to comment to what some of Mr. 

McLean had responded. And I understand he is representing the 

company, so it is his job to do so. 

clear that while you stated this is not the field office for 

But I do want to make it 
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the FCC, it is the field office to make sure that the consumers 

of the state of Florida, as well as the companies do well and 

do business properly, and that the consumers do not get double 

billed. Because where I come from, double billing, there is 

another term for that. And I just have a real ache right now 

in my belly that this company would say now at this time after 

its experience in three other states, the same thing, that all 

of a sudden it would say we don't know what you are talking 

about. 

So while I understand that we need viable companies 

here, they also need - -  we have a job and a responsibility and 

the public is entitled to that protection of this Commission to 

make sure that this doesn't occur. And if you do business in 

the wrong way in the state of Florida then perhaps you should 

be booted out of the state of Florida. 

I understand what you're saying. I guess, Mr. 

Chairman, my feelings at this moment are I'm not happy with 

what the consumers have been hit with. You say five complaints 

3ut of 500. Well, how many of the other 500 know that they 

were overbilled? Low income Lifeline customers. So I don't 

feel real good about the excuses that the company is giving 

today. 

I don't know where you could go. If we punish the 

zompany and said, you know, this is what you are going to get. 

You are going to pay back the consumers right away, and if you 
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Iant to do business in the state of Florida, even if we decide 

:o do that today, how do we have accountability in the next few 

ionths while we defer this that they are not going to continue 

.o rip off the people of the state of Florida? 

So, you know, the excuse, and I understand you have 

.o represent your client, but they showed bad business sense 

lere, and I take exception to the consumers in Florida being 

,ipped off. Now, if itls an accident, well, then show me where 

he accident is. Or I'm not sure how you proceed, Mr. 

'hairman, if you wanted this company to even stay in the state 

f Florida. What protections would we give the consumer today, 

r could you advise, Mr. McLean, that you would give the 

onsumers today if we deferred like you asked? 

MR. McLEAN: May I respond? 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Yes. 

MR. McLEAN: First of all, let me mention in passing, 

gain, that this company is entitled to an unbiased, undecided, 

nd impartial judge when it does go to hearing. The second 

hing is the double billing was against a federal fund to which 

lorida sends huge money and gets back small money. It was not 

double billing against customers. 

You can make an argument, it's a rather, I think, 

ketchy argument that the effect on the federal fund if it is 

nproperly billed will eventually inure to the detriment of all 

he citizens of the United States, but those are all unproven 
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facts, number one. But I wouldn't sit here and tell you that a 

double billing of a Florida resident, I could not defend that 

and I don't believe that is what is happening here. 

If there is double billing, and I doubt that there is 

because I am persuaded by what the company tells me, if there 

is it is a double billing of a fund in Washington to which we 

211 send money like it or not. I think it's real important, 

2nd I don't want to beat the drum too hard, that this company 

is entitled to unbiased, undecided, and disinterested judges 

dhen the hearing comes, if it comes. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Argenziano. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Can you tell me, does the 

zompany still do business in Minnesota, Oregon, and Washington? 

MR. McLEAN: No, ma'am, but I believe that the 

zompany - -  yes, in Minnesota I'm advised. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Skop. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

And, again, Mr. McLean, thank you very much for 

raising the arguments. I do respect the due process argument 

:hat you have raised. The question I have, I guess you just 

lade an analogy, and this is where I'm having a disconnect. I 

lean, we speak to the double billing of the universal service 

iund. Personally, I don't have a problem. I mean, if there 

ire eligible carriers who are able to tap from that fund, so be 

.t. I mean, you know, there has been arguments raised that the 
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federal fund is flawed and there is redundancies and what have 

you. But, again, it is analogous to, perhaps, a flawed tax 

system. And I'm trying to think of the word. I'll come back 

to it in a second. 

Anyway, what I'm trying to get at, though, is I don't 

see a basis - -  I hear more of an excuse that double billing of 

the federal fund is acceptable. And, again, I'm having 

problems with that. I don't think I could say it any better 

than Commissioner Argenziano articulated it. There is problems 

here, and, you know, if we need to go to hearing, maybe we need 

to go to hearing. But at the end of the day, the company seems 

to have a consistent track record of having problems. 

You know, what I would like staff to articulate also 

is that it seems to me that my understanding is that Washington 

state and Oregon seem to be states where the company pulled the 

certificate prior to any action being taken. So it was a 

voluntary withdrawal. And to me, I wonder if the same thing 

would happen here if we moved affirmatively forward with the 

staff recommendation whether we would see that same voluntary 

action. 

But, again, you know, getting back to this universal 

service fund argument that may be analogous in some situations 

to companies exploiting what is a tax loophole. Businesses do 

that every day, but I can distinguish that whole-heartedly 

3etween double billing of the federal fund, which as 
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Commissioner Argenziano raised, there is another word for what 

appears to be going on here. 

So, again, I'm interested to hear our staff rebut 

some of the arguments that have been made, but I just hear a 

whole host of excuses that, you know, because it's a federal 

issue we should just choose to ignore it, irrespective of how 

business is supposed to be conducted in Florida and the issues 

related to protecting our consumers. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you. Hold on. Hold, it. 

I've got the gavel. Here is how it works. We will hear from 

Commissioner McMurrian, then we will hear from staff, then we 

will hear from Commissioner Edgar. That's the way it goes, 

okay? 

Then, Commissioners, if you have any questions for 

the parties, then we will go back to the parties, but this is 

the way it is going to go. 

questions, then we will hear from staff to respond to the 

questions, then we will hear from Commissioner Edgar. 

Commissioner McMurrian had some 

Commissioner McMurrian, you're recognized. 

COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: Thank you, Chairman. And I 

guess these questions could be answered by the parties and 

staff, and however you choose to lay that out, that is 

perfectly okay with me. 

Mr. McLean brought up the point about the options, 

about settlement and sharpening the dispute and then PAA, and 
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:hat there would be a likely protest, or setting it directly 

€or hearing. 

lbout even if those latter two options were chosen, if you vote 

2ut the PAA in accordance with the staff recommendation and 

:hey protest, or if we set it directly for hearing, there is 

nothing that stops us also directing the parties to work with 

:he staff on trying to come to some settlement of some of these 

issues and sharpening the dispute before we are actually in 

nearing mode, if we are. And that is one question. 

And I want to hear from staff and the company 

And I guess the second, I guess it is a point, but I 

3lso want to make sure I get clarification from our General 

2ounsel on this. But with respect to the right to unbiased 

decision-makers, and I think that is correct, in a PAA mode, 

though, we are allowed to deal with allegations and not 

necessarily facts. 

an official hearing, and so it is sort of a quick and dirty 

decision based on what we have before us without having to have 

sworn testimony at this point. 

there is a hearing, we have the sworn testimony, and it may be 

that the decision is different after we find out the true facts 

of the case. But at this point we don't have to have exact 

facts. I am probably not laying this out exactly correctly, 

but can you help me? 

We definitely are in a fact finding mode of 

And then if we go forward and 

Chairman, whenever it's appropriate, I wanted answers 

to those two points. 
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CHAIRMAN CARTER: Okay. Mr. Cooke, you're 

recognized. 

MR. COOKE: The first point was whether we could have 

negotiations if there was a hearing in process. And, yes, the 

answer is that there is no reason we couldn't continue to speak 

with the company and see if there is some settlement that is 

appropriate, and that could be presented to the Commission. 

The second question is this is PAA, proposed agency 

action, and we are entitled to - -  it's an informal process 

based on the allegations that are presented in the 

recommendation. The company has the right if it disagrees with 

the outcome of this process to request a hearing, and a hearing 

uould be conducted, and I believe that this Commission, these 

Zommissioners, based on the evidence heard at that hearing 

dould exercise unbiased decision-making at that point. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Edgar, after hearing 

from staff, Commissioner McMurrian asked a question that would 

3 0  to the parties and to staff. Did you want me to continue 

Mith her line of questioning and then come back to staff? 

COMMISSIONER EDGAR: Thank you. If I may, a brief 

zomment along the same lines. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: You're recognized. 

COMMISSIONER EDGAR: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

And, Commissioner McMurrian, you asked the questions 

:hat I was getting ready to ask, so thank you. I'm thinking 
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back over the past few years, and probably even before that, 

and I think we have had a number of instances where we have 

adopted a P2W recommendation and have begun to move in the 

direction of going to hearing, but, yet, have also had our 

staff work with a party or parties towards a potential 

settlement or other negotiations. So I think that we do h V 

precedent of that occurring in the past in a number of fronts, 

and I would say that that is not all that unusual in either a 

regulatory administrative forum or in any other judicial forum 

that at the same time you are getting ready to go to hearing, 

you are also exploring other remedies that may or may not be 

able to come to fruition. So the comments about bifurcating 

staff, I mean, I think all of that is very doable. 

You know, there are a number of issues in here. We 

have the excess charges, or allegations, or instances raised of 

excess E911 fees, of inappropriate billing, of late fees, of 

concerns raised about, my words, that perhaps misuse of some of 

the federal funds, and that is an issue that is of particular 

interest and concern to me. 

SO I guess I would like, if I may, Mr. Chairman, then 

as part of this discussion that we are having to ask staff to 

also respond to some of those issues that have come up in their 

investigation that brought us to where we are today, because I 

think there are some other instances of concern that we haven't 

really touched on yet. 
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CHAIRMAN CARTER: Mr. Casey, you're recognized. 

MR. CASEY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

We began looking at VCI last year in April, and we 

sent out a data request to them because we were worried about 

the toll blocking charges. It seemed that every one of their 

customers were on toll blocking. We wanted to make sure that 

the customers had an option to take toll blocking or not. That 

is what started it. 

And, of course, we can go back even further. Staff 

has been monitoring universal service disbursements since 

October of 2004. Every month we watch what's disbursed and to 

who it is disbursed. If we see a red flag or something, we 

will question it, and we will go after it and find out what's 

wrong. 

In August - -  well, even before August. In June of 

last year we had an agenda conference where this Commission was 

adamant about accountability of the Federal Universal Service 

Fund and practically demanded accountability. And that is what 

staff is after, accountability. The order from the FCC came 

out in August. We followed up and notified them of an audit in 

September. And, as Ms. Klinzman said, they questioned our 

authority, but that was straightened up on the conference call. 

I asked at the end of that explanation if they still wanted a 

written response and they say no, that would be fine. 

Then we had another conference call, post-audit 
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conference call, and then we actually gave them the questions 

that we were going to ask. They asked if they could have the 

questions ahead of time. So they new staff's concerns. We 

actually wrote out the questions and submitted them to them 

before the conference call. 

Staff went on and analyzed the information from the 

audit. We went ahead and subpoenaed AT&T's records, because we 

wanted to know the actual amount of lines in the state of 

Florida that VCI had, and compared them to what they were 

claiming at the universal service administrative company. And 

that is the black and white picture right here. 

We have the actual lines in the state of Florida, 

dhich were provided by their underlying carrier, and we have 

the Form 497s, which were filed by VCI showing the number of 

lines that they claimed, and there is a huge amount of 

jifference. Mr. McLean said that they have 5,000 happy 

zustomers. Well, according to the actual number of lines in 

;he state of Florida it's a fraction of that. 

If I could respond just to a couple of Ms. Klinzman's 

inquiries. On E911, staff would be happy to look at that if 

:hey could provide proof of the actual payments to the 911. We 

ire concerned. Of the telephone numbers that they did give us, 

:here was a lot of false ones. If they could provide some 

2vidence in an affidavit, staff could certainly work with that. 

As far as being a strict reseller, we never stated 
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that they were a strict reseller. What the recommendation 

states is that between June and November of last year they were 

a strict reseller. Now, in order to provide universal service, 

they have to use their own facilities or a combination of their 

own facilities and another carrier's resale facilities. They 

didn't do that for six months. From May - -  I'm sorry, from 

June until November of last year they did not, it was strictly 

resale. So we didn't say they were a strict reseller the whole 

time, Just those six months they were a strict reseller in 

violation of federal rules. 

As far as a death sentence, yes, it is, and we took 

it very seriously whether or not to recommend that. I 

contacted the Federal Communications Commission, the 

enforcement bureau, and spoke to a deputy bureau chief just two 

weeks ago, and I have had three calls with him since then. And 

I was asking if a state commission has the authority to suspend 

payments to an ETC. He called me at 4 : O O  o'clock yesterday 

finally, and said no, we can't answer you. We don't know. 

What can this Commission do? Well, we can only do 

what is in our purview. We can rescind the ETC status, which 

is their license to receive these federal funds. Apparently, 

sccording to the FCC, we can't suspend it at this time. The 

3nly thing we can do is rescind that ETC status, which would 

stop payments to them. 

The reason why we started this, basically two things. 
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rhe Commission issued the ETC status to them, granted it. We 

granted it to them, we also have the authority to take it back, 

m d  that has been stated in many FCC orders. That was our 

zoncern. We gave them this license and this misconduct is 

Dccurring, and that bothers staff. 

The other thing is that Florida consumers are paying 

into the universal service fund. What staff is saying is that 

there was 1.3 million inappropriately given to them. Well, 

Florida citizens accounted for over $100,000 of that, and that 

2lso concerns staff. And if you have any legal questions, of 

Zourse, my attorney is here. I don't want to get into that. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Edgar. 

COMMISSIONER EDGAR: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

You know, as I think through these issues, it does 

seem to me that under both the federal and state law that state 

zommissions have the authority to grant ETC status under 

zertain criteria, and that when that grant is given that that 

is offering kind of the keys to the kingdom. I mean, it is 

Dffering or giving the right to pull down federal funds that 

?very consumer contributes to. And because it is an action of 

:he state commission to then open the doors to those federal 

funds, I do feel like we have a responsibility to have our 

staff do audits and to pursue accountability and to pursue 

fuller and more transparent information about what is being 

done with those funds under that program. And I'm just 
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concerned that with a number of the issues that staff have 

raised to us that we may need to take some action. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you, Commissioner. 

I'm just kind of thinking aloud. I'm going to get to 

part two of your question, Commissioner McMurrian. I'm just 

kind of thinking aloud. Listening to Mr. McLean's lecture 

about he didn't want to threaten us or anything like that, but 

we have got lawyers, too. And I don't know anybody on this 

Commission that's willing to be intimidated, so that's not an 

issue. 

I think what is before us is, you know, we get into 

the weeds, but let's kind of break it down to reality. The 

reality is people were overcharged by this company. That's the 

reality. Secondly is that this company, even when it got 

caught with its hands in the cookie jar, tried to backhand 

staff and say you don't have jurisdiction. 

You know, first of all, let he who seek equity do so 

rhJith clean hands. This doesn't seem like a clean hands case, 

Yr. McLean. And fundamentally in business is that if the ETC 

status was so important to this company, it seems like to me 

they would have moved heaven and earth to protect it, and I 

don't think they have done so in this case. I really don't 

think so. I think that on its face it's a classic case of, you 

mow, how not to run a business. 

And Commissioner Edgar, Commissioner Argenziano, 
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Commissioner Skop, Commissioner McMurrian, and myself agree 

that citizens of Florida, customers in Florida paid money for 

services that were not rendered to them, and I haven't heard 

anyone on the side of this company make any kind of statement 

about a refund, any kind of attempt that they may refund one 

brown penny to the customers. That gives me great concern. I 

have heard all the legal and lofty arguments, by I haven't 

heard not single scintilla of a statement from anyone saying we 

found out that we made a mistake, therefore, we are willing to 

offer a refund to the customers. 

Commissioners, did I miss something? Did you all 

hear that, because I didn't hear that. I'm really concerned 

about that. 

Now, Commissioner McMurrian, you had two questions 

and you asked your two questions of staff and you asked them of 

the parties. You're recognized. 

COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: Thank you. I'm sure 

Mr. McLean remembers my questions, but I will go over them 

again. The first was with respect to your three options, and 

particularly with the second two with regard to if we were to 

vote out staff's rec and the P M  form and it was protested, and 

it sounds like it definitely would be, or we set it directly 

for hearing that you would still be in a posture to settle. In 

fact, the Commission could try to direct the parties to settle 

2nd try to sharpen the case, as you said, before we get into 
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the hearing mode. 

And then the second was with respect to the bias 

issue. And, again, we are in that P?iA posture, and that we are 

dealing with, I guess, allegations at this stage, and that if 

we do end up in a hearing mode, and, again, it sounds like we 

might very well do that, then we will be looking at sworn 

testimony and facts and we will be looking at it from that 

point of view. But I will just let you respond to those two 

things. 

MR. McLEAN: Yes, ma'am. I agree entirely with your 

Zeneral Counsel. It is certainly true that you can settle the 

case until the jury gets back, essentially. We will always be 

uilling to settle, willing to talk, I should say, and try to 

YZrork these differences out. And that can follow all the way 

through the process, irrespective of what your vote is today. 

I would say, however, that when you vote out 

issentially an indictment, an administrative law indictment, 

rJhich your show cause order is, it revokes their license, 

?arties are more likely to engage in a siege mentality. It is 

numan nature to be a lot more careful when you are under the 

3un, and I believe it would chill settlement negotiations that 

nlould otherwise take place. That's my personal experience with 

iegotiations, and I would urge you, again, to allow some time 

For them to work out their differences. But, yes, ma'am, it is 

zertainly true that if you vote the staff recommendation, or if 
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you vote to go directly to hearing, it is still possible to 

have settlement negotiations. I think less likely, but 

certainly still possible. 

The second issue, I think I may have been 

misunderstood when I reemphasized several times that the 

parties are entitled to unbiased, undecided, fair judges of 

their case. You have seized the proposed agency action exactly 

clorrectly. Some have called it quick and dirty and I accept 

that. It is essentially, staff brings to you a series of 

2llegations and you propose to act on those. That alone, of 

zourse, doesn't represent any bias at all. But when you make 

statements like the company should probably be run out of the 

state of Florida, you are signaling how you are going to 

receive the evidence, perhaps, when presented. 

And my point in bringing that up several times was to 

say, remember, this is an accusatory proceeding in which the 

staff is accusing a business and that business is entitled, 

just like every other citizen of the state, to a fair hearing, 

10 the production of clear and convincing evidence before an 

inbiased panel. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Argenziano. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: To the point, if you are 

Yeferring, Mr. McLean, to my comment, let me refresh your 

iemory of what I said, is that if the company was practicing in 

L way that was not in the interest of the consumer, or abiding 
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not longer practice or be in business in the state of Florida. 

So that is my opinion if they were found to have not been above 

and beyond. 

MR. McLEAN: We agree with that entirely, 

Commissioner. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Let me put into the record 

something else so that it's not just - -  sometimes it's just 

common sense. Sometimes you just read and see what you find, 

and sometimes you just come up with a conclusion. And let me 

read this, if I may. Indulge me, please. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: You're recognized. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: "Seven phone numbers of the 

130 sample invoices from Florida obtained by our auditors 

contained area codes for Canada, Georgia, Texas, Michigan, one 

fictitious area code, and two area codes that are not even 

assigned yet. 

Florida addresses. Staff believes that these bills may not 

represent real customers. 

However, each of the addresses on the bills had 

"Staff called the telephone numbers provided on the 

130 invoices and found that 77 numbers were disconnected, nine 

had recordings that their numbers were not in service, four 

were business numbers not eligible for Lifeline, two were 

consumers that stated that they were not customers of VCI, and 

one was a consumer who stated he was a VCI customer, but not on 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

a 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

1 7  

i a  

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

3 a  

the Lifeline program. Two customers confirmed that VCI was 

their provider of service and that they were participants in 

the Lifeline program. 

"A check of the 130 sample VCI invoices also showed 

that every customer was paying a $10 late fee. Every customer. 

Staff asked VCI how all 130 customers in the random sample 

could have paid their bill late. VCI replied that it was a 

coincidence. And during staff's calls to verify the VCI 

customers, one customer stated that VCI's payment was an 

automatic deduction from their checking account and it still 

showed a late payment on its invoice." 

So some things you just take at face value, you know, 

when the customers are called and asked the question. That, 

you know, just makes you feel, like I said before, not so cozy 

about the whole situation. 

Mr. Chairman, if it is proper and due process to go 

to a hearing, then I say yes, due process should always take 

place. 

a little maybe a friendly statement by the company that they 

are willing to pay back the consumers of the state of Florida 

if they overcharged inappropriately. 

in between that due process. How do we know that that doesn't 

continue while it's deferred and then they pull a certificate 

and our consumers are out even more money after deferring. So 

that would be my feeling at this time. 

But I would want some assurances and maybe some kind of 

And some kind of security 
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CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Argenziano, I share 

your concern, because to me with the PAA - -  I disagree with Mr. 

McLean's perspective on it. 

we go to a formal hearing, we may decide to allow them to 

maintain the ETC status and we may not, but certainly we will 

get into a more formalized process. 

are saying is that we don't really want them to say that they 

have got the money, so we will just withdraw and you don't have 

any jurisdiction over us. 

including the $100,000 from the Florida customers, we'll get to 

keep that, too. 

I think that we can resolve - -  if 

But I agree with what you 

So all of the money that we got, 

And if they are serious about doing business in 

Florida, they will go through the process. I am concerned 

about that as well. 

all five of us are saying, 

that we are concerned about this. 

this. 

And I'm sure that from listening to what 

I hope that everybody understands 

We are very concerned about 

Mr. Johnson? 

MR. JOHNSON: Yes. Yes. Yes. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Do you want to say anything? 

MR. JOHNSON: Yes, I do. I absolutely want to say 

something. 

(Simultaneous conversation.) 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Mr. Johnson? 

MR. JOHNSON: Yes. 
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CHAIRMAN CARTER: I hope you have been listening to 

the Commissioners. 

MR. JOHNSON: Oh, absolutely I have. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: And I hope that what you have to 

say will have some impact on where we are. 

MR. JOHNSON: I understand. I heard everything the 

Commissioners said. 

First and foremost, every single meeting VCI had with 

staff we agreed to resubmit 497s for anything that we both 

agreed was a double billing. I just want to address all the 

concerns that I heard that VCI had never ever said they would 

refund any monies that were found in wrongdoing. The whole 

time we went through the process we did that. 

Anybody who deals with the low income consumer knows 

how transient the customers are. Some of the bills they looked 

st are over a year old. Some of the 137 bills that they 

grabbed from are well over a year old. Our average customer, a 

3ood customer lasts four months. They are on and off the 

?latform all the time. Area codes, you have typos from our 

system to their system. There are absolutely some inherent 

zrrors in the system and VCI agreed to resubmit 497s. 

Of the $100,000 that VCI took from Florida customers, 

I'm not quite sure how staff arrived at that number, because 

:here is well over 4 or $5 million that goes into California 

€rom Florida every year. I'm not going to go that direction 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

41 

right now. 

Commissioner, whatever you guys decide, it sounds 

like to me decisions have already been made. I understand if 

you guys feel that that is the way we are, and you have heard 

everything we had to say, then I would like to go ahead and go 

to trial as soon - -  I'd like to go ahead and get started on 

this. Because we bill no different than any of the other 

wireless carriers there. The billing system we developed comes 

from a Verizon, or A T & T .  

A l l  of those questions were never asked. Not once 

did we get a question saying, well, hey, we subpoenaed A T & T ,  

you know, they said you have one line, you say you have four. 

Not one time did we hear anybody ask any questions at all. I 

could have easily explained, hey, this is how our billing 

system works. We are in a one-year contract, one-year 

agreement with every customer based on the FCC's rules, and we 

are not allowed to collect early on any of those customers 

until the one year is up. 

So every single month whether the line is active or 

not, which there's no rules in the FCC rules that says the line 

has to be active. Every month they get a connection fee. If 

they don't pay the connection fee by the 15th they get a late 

charge. Every single month. That's invoiced billable 

customers according to the FCC rules. I don't see anywhere - -  

we've went back and forth, we bill just like wireless carriers 
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bill. You enter an agreement with those guys, you are under 

contract where you pay an early termination fee. We could have 

talked to staff about any question that they had. They never 

actually asked the questions they wanted to know. 

Yes, we got a lot of information thrown across the 

desk at us and answering questions, and the six months that he 

talked about we operated legally, we had a union line in every 

single one of those months. We did provide facilities or had a 

combination of. Some of the experts at the FCC and DC believe 

that if you provide a de minimis number of UNEs on your 

platform, as long as it's a combination of, that's 

facility-based. That has not been defined by the FCC, as well. 

So during those six months we had a combination of. We just 

chose to build our own network. Contrary to what AT&T says, 

you can dial around and get toll charges. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you, Mr. Johnson. 

Commissioner Argenziano, you're recognized for a 

question. 

Mr. Johnson, we have a question for you. 

MR. JOHNSON: Sure. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Mr. Johnson, how do you 

axplain when a customer's payment is automatically deducted 

from his checking account, how do you explain a late fee on 

that? 

MR. JOHNSON: Okay, I can explain that. We have 
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several customers whose have a date - -  and I think I found a 

particular customer that you talked about. 

every month. 

payment. It actually bounces. His check hasn't arrived yet. 

Anytime he gets his check and it arrives a day or two late, he 

actually bounces it, and we get charged from the bank. We get 

charged from our bank because the payment doesn't go through, 

his debit card. 

bill is not paid on time. 

He gets a late fee 

We actually charge him through his automatic 

So it actually bounces back and forth, so his 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: I don't understand that at 

all. I know I have automatic deductions from my checking 

account and I don't get any late fees. 

MR. JOHNSON: If you are of a certain 

creditworthiness with the bank and you have never had any 

bounced checks or any of those things like that, 

approve up to a certain limit if you have overdraft protection. 

Most of our customers are not - -  well, they're not creditworthy 

or they would be with the AT&T if that was an option for them, 

but it wasn't. 

funds are not available right there, it actually bounces. 

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: I would like staff to 

they will 

So any time you charge their account and the 

address that because I don't see how that's possible. 

MR. JOHNSON: Sure. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Mr. Casey or Mr. Moses. 

MR. MOSES: Well, the person that he is talking to, 
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I'm the one that made the telephone call to them, and the lady 

told me that she had it automatically drafted from her checking 

account every month, and she mentioned nothing about being any 

bounced checks or anything of that nature. And when I 

questioned her about the $10 late fee on her invoice, she said, 

well, that is on there every time, and she said that's just the 

way it is. 

MR. JOHNSON: I can respond to that as well, too. 

It had to be a debit card. We don't do checks Two things. 

over the phone. She had a debit card that if her check, you 

know, arrives on the 5th and she has a date set up for the 

10th - -  or, I'm sorry, for the 4th, and we go through and run 

her debit card on the 4th, if her monies are not available in 

her account, that comes back as a - -  I will called it a bounced 

check or a kickback. So her payment is not actually made on 

the date that she has scheduled. 

MR. MOSES: Regardless, Commissioners, of this one 

individual, every single invoice that we got had that late 

charge on it, and I find it hard to believe that 130 people are 

late every single month. 

MR. JOHNSON: Well, I can say this, every new 

customer we get, 50 percent of them disconnect. Of every 

customer that stay on our platform, 20 percent disconnect every 

single month. And that's pretty much industry standard; so 

getting paid late is the second dynamic of it. We are talking 
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people don't pay at all. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you, Mr. Johnson. 

Commissioner Edgar, you're recognized. 

COMMISSIONER EDGAR: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. As we 

are all aware, the universal service fund and all of the 

various components and programs related to it have 

accountability spread across a number of places, 

levels with USAC, with the FCC, with the state commissions, 

certainly also with the companies. 

a number of 

I am comfortable that with all of the discussion that 

we have had today and the work that our staff has done, that to 

proceed with the PAA process is appropriate at this time, and I 

would make a motion in support of the staff recommendation. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Second. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: It has been moved and properly 

seconded. 

Commissioners, any questions? 

Commissioner McMurrian, you're recognized. 

COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN: Yes. I'm going to support 

the motion, but I did want to ask a procedural question of our 

legal staff. 

B would be - -  because I heard Mr. Johnson when he said he's 

ready to just get on to trial. 

certain period, a protest period. If the company were to 

protest earlier, we can get started with setting the matter for 

How soon can we get the order out? And then Part 

I know that we normally have a 
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hearing earlier, can we not? Or do we still need to wait in 

case any other party protested for that full protest period? 

Am I making sense? I will try to rephrase if I need to. 

MR. COOKE: Commissioner, I think as soon as it's 

protested we can begin trying - -  it's more a reflection of the 

calendar and making sure we can get hearing dates scheduled, et 

Eetera. If other persons later on, I guess, wanted to 

intervene, there's an intervention process. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Skop. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

And I think this has been mentioned, but I just want 

co have staff reiterate that if we move forward with the PAA 

2nd rescind the certificate that the customers are adequately 

?rotected. There are other mechanisms for the customers who 

receive phone service. 

MR. CASEY: Yes, sir. In the recommendation we are 

2sking that the Commission order AT&T to take over those 

zustomers. They are the underlying carrier, they are also an 

3TC. 

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Thank you. 

MR. McLEAN: May I have a point of clarification? 

You're voting to do that if the case is borne out at 

iearing, is that correct, or is there a waiver contemplated 

low? Because the way I read the recommendation, that waiver 

Jould occur, if ever, after hearing. 
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CHAIRMAN CARTER: Mr. Casey. 

Ms. Tan. 

MS. TAN: Lee Eng Tan for Commission staff. If the 

PAA is consummated, then the waiver would go into effect. 

MR. COOKE: In other words, Commissioners, if it's 

protested then there is not a final decision on this. 

MR. McLEAN: Thank you. 

That's the way I originally took it. I just wanted 

to make sure. Thank you very much. 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Okay. Commissioners, any further 

questions? We have been moved and properly seconded. Are you 

ready for the vote? All in favor of the vote, let it be known 

3y the sign of aye. 

(Unanimous affirmative vote.) 

CHAIRMAN CARTER: All those opposed, like sign. 

* * * * * * * *  
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